
International Law.! That article stated clearly that
diplomats and the members of their families re­
siding with them were not subject to the civil or
criminal jurisdiction of the Government to which
the diplomat was accredited. He emphasized the
fact that the provisions of article 12 did not specify
an age limit beyond which diplomatic immunity
was not extended to members of the family, nor
did that article lay down any conditions except
that the members of the family, in order to be
covered by diplomatic :immunity, should reside
with the diplomat.

Article 15 of those same Rules, which had been
quoted by the USSR representative, referred to
nationals of, a State who had been accredited to
that State by another Government and were in­
tended to act as representatives of the foreign
State. The daughter-in-law of the former Chilean
Ambassador to the USSR had not been accredited
by the Chilean Government to the Soviet Union
and, for that reason, the USSR representative's
argument was not valid. The Chilean delegation
maintained that Mrs. Alvaro Cruz was a member
of the family of the former Chilean Ambassador
to the USSR, residing in the domicile of that
diplomat, and therefore, under the terms of article
12 of the Rules of 1895, diplomatic immunity
should be extended to her. That procedure was
recognized diplomatic practice. It was true that
there was no international treaty on the subject,
but there had been so few cases of violations of
diplomatic practice that there had never been
any need to codify those usages.

The representative of Czechoslovakia had pre­
sented more or less the same arguments as the
representative of the Soviet Union. He had stated
that the case involved a question of nationality.
The Chilean delegation did not agree with that
statement. It did not believe that the matter was
either a question of nationality or a question ex­
clusively within domestic jurisdiction. The Chilean
delegation believed that it was a question of a
violation of fundamental human rights. The USSR
was a signatory to the Charter of the United Na­
tions and under the terms of that document it had
undertaken to respect those rights. It was conse­
quently bound to fulfil its obligations under the
Charter.

Mr. Cruz Ocampo then interrupted his reply
to state that he would continue his remarks at
the next meeting.

The meeting rose at 1.10 p.m.

HUNDRED AND THIRTY·NINTH
MEETING

Held at the Palais de Chaillot, Paris,
on Tuesday, 7 December 1948, at 3.30 p.m,

Chairman: Mr. R. ]. ALFARO (Panama).

93. Conclusion of the discussion on
"the question of the violation by the
Union of Soviet Socialist Republics
of fundamental human rights, tradi-

reporter a l'article 12 du Reglement sur Ies
immunites diplomatiques etabli en 1895 par
I'Institut de droit international'. Aux termes de
cet article, un diplomate et les membres de sa
famille residant a son domicile, ne sont pas sou­
mis it la juridiction civile ou criminelle des gou­
vernements aupres desquels le diplomate est
accredite, Le representant du Chili souligne que
l'article 12 ne contient aucune disposition fixant
un age limite au dela duquel les membres de la
famille du diplomate ne beneficient plus de I'im­
munite diplomatique, ou stipulant des conditions,
autres que l'obligation, pour les membres de la
famille du diplomate, de resider avec celui-ci
afin de beneficier de cette immunite.

L'article 15 de ce meme Reglement, cite par
le representant de l'URSS, concerne les ressortis­
sants d'un Etat qui ant ete accreditee aupres de
cet Etat par un Gouvernement etranger dont
ils doivent remplir les fonctions de representants.
La bru de l'ancien ambassadeur du Chili en
URSS n'a pas ete accreditee par le Gouverne­
ment chilien aupres du Gouvernement de l'Union
sovietique : l'argument du representant de ce pays
n'a done aucune valeur, La delegation du Chili
affinne que Mme Alvaro Cruz est un membre
de la famille de l'ancien ambassadeur du Chili
en URSS, residant au domicile de ce diplomate,
et doit done, aux tennes de l'article 12 du Regie­
ment de 1895, beneficier ega:Iement de l'immu­
nite diplomatique. Cette methode est une pratique
diplomatique reconnue. Il est exact qu'aucun
traite international ne contient de disposition
expresse it cet egard, mais la pratique diploma­
tique a ete si rarement violee que l'on n'a jamais
juge necessaire de la codifier.

Le representant de la Tchecoslovaquie a in­
voque it peu pres les mernes arguments que le
representant de l'Union sovietique, It a declare
que l'affaire soulevait une question de natio­
nalite, ce que la delegation du Chili ne saurait
admettre. Elle estime qu'il ne s'agit ni d'une
question de nationalite, ni d'une question relevant
uniquement de la competence nationale d'un
Etat. La delegation du Chili considere qu'il s'agit
uniquement d'une violation des droits fondamen­
taux de I'hornme. L'URSS est signataire de la
Charte de l'Organisation, aux termes de laquelle
elle s'est engagee it respecter ces droits. Elle est
donc tenue de s'acquitter des obligations qui lui
incombent de ce fait.

A ce moment, M. Cruz Ocampo s'interrompt
et declare qu'il continuera son expose a la pro­
chaine seance.

La seance est levee a 13 h. 10.

CENT·TRENTE·NEUVIEME SEANCE

Tenue au Palais de Chaillot, Paris,
le mardi 7 decembre 1948, a15 h. 30.

President: M. R. ]. ALFARO (Panama).

93. Fin de la discussion sur la question
de la violation par I'Union des Re­
puhliques socialistes sovietiques des
droits fondamentaux de Phomme,

1 See the Year-Book of the Institute of International 1 Voir l'Annuaire de l'Institut de droit interootioool,
Law,. XIV, 1895-1896. XIV, 1895-1896.



= tional diplomatic practices and other
principles of the Charter

Mr. CRUZ OCAMPO (Chile) said that he would
not answer all the arguments put forward by the
Polish representative (137th and 138th meetings) ,
as they were for the most part, identical with those
presented by the representative of Czechoslovakia
(137th meeting), to which he had already replied
(138th meeting).

He was, however, grateful to the Polish repre­
sentative for having mentioned the case of a crime
committed at the Chilean Embassy at Brussels
in 1906, by the Ambassador's son, and having
thus given him the opportunity of speaking about
the question of diplomatic immunity. Far from
being scandalous, as the representative of Poland
had said, that case confirmed the theory Mr. Cruz
Ocampo had always supported, namely, that the
members of the immediate family of a diplomat
enjoyed diplomatic immunity, regardless of their
age, and that such immunity could not be waived.

In the case in question, although the criminal
was of age, and although his father had waived
diplomatic immunity, the Belgian Government had
nevertheless refused to accept that waiver in
order to try the criminal. The Chilean Govern­
ment itself had had to waive immunity before the
Belgian courts could declare themselves com­
petent to deal with the case.
. The Polish representative's comments on the
colonial policy of certain Powers had nothing
whatever to do with the item on the agenda. He
was not going to defend the policy of the colonial
Powers, but he wished to draw attention to the
special circumstances in which the colonizing
countries were carrying out their work, the use­
fulness of which could not be questioned.

Anydne finding fault with the colonial policy
of the United Kingdom and the United States of
America should not forget that working condi­
tions in the USSR and Poland were far more .
open to criticism. It was obvious that working
conditions in certain backward countries could
not be the same as those in the more advanced
countries. But what could be thought of the USSR
and Poland, for instance, which subjected
their own' citizens to working conditions
which were not far removed from slavery? While
the Romans and the Babylonians had been con­
tent to reduce only their conquered peoples to a
state of slavery, the peoples of the USSR and
Poland were reduced to slavery by their own
Governments.

The Polish representative had spoken of a reign
of terror in Chile. Such an allegation would be­
token a remarkable imagination if it were not
based on the writings of a certain poet, a bad
citizen who had completely distorted the facts.
The remarks of the Polish representative showed
that he was not acquainted with Chile.

. The Polish representative had also spoken of
the deplorable situation of the women in Chile.
But Chilean women had been taking part in com­
munal and municipal elections for a long time.
A draft law that would give them equal rights

. .. j .
des usages diplomatiques tradition­
nels et des principes de la Charte

M. CRUZ OCAMPO (Chili) declare qu'il ne re­
pondra pas it tous les arguments mis en avant
par le representant de la Pologne (137eme et
138eme seances) puisqu'ils soot pour la plupart
identiques a ceux du representant de la Tcheco­
slovaquie (137eme seance), -auquel il a d.~ja. re­
pondu (138eme seance).

Il remercie toutefois le representant de la
Pologne de lui donner l'occasion de parler de
la question des immunites diplomatiques, en
citant le cas d'un crime commis en 1906 it l'am­
bassade du Chili it Bruxelles par le fils de l'ambas­
sadeur. Loin d'etre scandaleux, comme [e dit
le representant de la Pologne, ce cas confirme la
these que M. Cruz Ocampo a toujours defendue,
a savoir que les membres de la famille immediate
d'un diplomate jouissent des immunites diplo­
matiques, quel que soit leur age, et que ces
immunites ne sauraient faire l'objet d'une
renonciation.

Dans le cas precite, bien que le criminel ftit
majeur et bien que son pere efrt renonce aux
immunites diplomatiques, le Gouvernement belge
refusa neanmoins d'accepter cette renonciation
pour juger le criminel. Il fallut que le Gouverne­
ment chilien lui-meme levat l'immunite pour que
les tribunaux beiges se declarassent competents
pour se saisir de l'affaire,

M. Cruz Ocampo en vient aux observations
du representant de la Pologne relativement a
la politique coloniale de certaines Puissances,
observations qui, fait-il remarquer, n'ont aucun
rapport avec la question it l'ordre du jour. It
declare qu'il n'a pas l'intention de defendre ici
la politique des Puissances coloniales, mais il
tient neanmoins a rappeler que les pays colo­
nisateurs accomplissent leur ceuvre, d'une utilite
incontestable, dans des conditions particulieres
dont il faut tenir compte.

Ceux qui prennent 11. partie la politique colo­
niale du Royaume-Uni et des Etats-Unis ne
devraient pas oublier que les conditions de tra­
vail en URSS et en Pologne sont autrement
sujettes it critique. It est evident que les condi­
tions de travail dans certains pays arrieres ne peu­
vent etre identiques 11. ceHes qui existent dans
les pays plus evolues. Mais que penser de l'Union
sovietique et de la Pologne par exemple, qui
imposent it leurs prop res citoyens des conditions
de travail voisines de l'esc1avage? Alors que
les Romains et les Babyloniens se contentaient
de reduire en esclavage les peuples vaincus, les
peuples de l'URSS et de la Pologne sont reduits
en esclavage par leurs propres Gouvernements.

M. Cruz Ocampo passe it l'allusion faite par
le representant de -Ia Pologne it la situation de
terreur qui regnerait au Chili, Une pareille alle­
gation denoterait une imagination remarquable
si eUe n'etait fondee sur les ecrits d'un certain
poete, un mauvais citoyen qui a completement
deforme la realite. Les declarations du represen­
tant de la Pologne demontrent que celui-ci ne
connait pas le Chili.

Ce representant a egalement fait etat de la
situation lamentable dans laquelle se trouveraient
les femmes au Chili, M. Cruz Ocampo fait
remarquer que, depuis longtemps, la femme chi­
lienne participe aux elections communales et

$ .

769



with men was currently under consideration. The
initiation of such a project had been deferred in
order to allow women to become conscious of
their political responsibilities; there was no point
in conferring rights that could not be exercised.
It was true that men and women enjoyed the same
rights in the USSR, but those rights were non­
existent for both men and women.

Mr. Cruz Ocampo pointed out that the special
provisions for women in the Chilean penal code,
which dated from 1875, had been based on the
principles of the Napoleonic Code, according to
which only men were held to be politically respon­
sible. Nevertheless, the Chilean code contained
numerous special provisions which recognized the
equality of men and women.

It had also been alleg-ed that Chilean law al­
lowed a husband or guardian to violate the pri­
vacy of women's correspondence. That statement
was not true. A guardian certainly had the right,
in the interest of the minor under his care, to
open his ward's correspondence and to do certain
things in his name. But what of the situation in
Poland, where, according to reports, there was no
privacy of correspondence whatever? In fact, so
vigilant was the censorship that few letters ever
reached their destination.

Speaking of the allusions the Polish representa­
tive had made to the health conditions which he
alleged prevailed in Chile, Mr. Cruz Ocampo
stated that there were more doctors in his country
than were necessary. There were three faculties
of medicine. The situation in Chile was such that
the Government had had to take steps to restrict
the number of candidates for a medical degree.

Finally, the Polish representative had stated
that there were 30,000 political prisoners in Chile.
He had undoubtedly been mistaken in his figures,
for if there were 3,000 that was the very most.
The total number of prisoners in Chile, including
persons arrested for ordinary offences, did not
amount to 30,000. Compared to that figure, how
many prisoners were there in Poland and the
Soviet Union?

Mr. Cruz Ocampo went on to reply to the
remarks of the Yugoslav representative, who had
said that it would be unworthy of the General
Assembly to consider the item proposed by Chile.
He did hot consider it unworthy of the General
Assembly to deal with a complaint which con­
cerne,' a violation of fundamental human rights.

The representative of the Byelorussian SSR
had used similar arguments (138th meeting). He
had quoted among others rule 15 of the rules of
the International Institute of Law, which had al­
ready been quoted by the USSR representative.
Mr. Cruz Ocampo would not repeat the answer
he had given on that subject.

The representative of the Byelorussian SSR
had also spoken of the intolerable and inhuman
conditions of life to which the women of Chile
were subjected. Such statements were completely
unfounded, for there was no doubt that the women
of Chile were more fortunate than' the Soviet

municipales. Un projet de loi est actuellement
a l'etude pour lui conferer l'egalite de droits
avec l'homme. Si l'on a attendu longtemps avant
de mettre ce projet a execution, c'etait pour
permettre a la femme de prendre conscience de
ses responsabilites politiques; en effet, ce n'est
pas la peine d'accorder des droits qui ne peuvent
etre exerces. I1 est vrai qu'en URSS, l'homme
et la femme jouissent des memes droits, mais
ces droits sont inexistants aussi bien pour l'un
que pour l'autre.

L'orateur rappelle que les dispositions parti­
culieres aux femmes dans le code penal du Chili
datent de 1875 et sont fondees sur les principes
du code Napoleon, d'apres lesquels l'homme
etait seul considere comme etant politiquement
responsable, I1 existe neanmoins dans ce code de
nombreuses dispositions particulieres qui recon­
naissent l'egalite de l'homme et de la femme.

On a egalement reproche aux lois chiliennes
de permettre au mari ou au tuteur de violer le
secret de la correspondance -feminine. Cette
affirmation est inexacte. Le tuteur a certes le
droit, dans l'interet de l'enfant dont il a la
garde, d'ouvrir sa correspondance et d'accomplir
certains actes en son nom. Mais que penser de
la situation qui regne en Pologne, OU, a ce qu'on
rapporte, le secret de la correspondance n'existe­
rait pas du tout? En raison d'une censure parti­
culierernent vigilante, tres peu de lettres en effet
parviennent a leurs destinataires.

Parlant des allusions faites par le represen­
tant 'de la Pologne aux conditions d'hygiene qui
regneraient au Chili, M. Cruz Ocampo declare
qu'il y a plus de medecins qu'il n'en faut dans
son pays. I1 existe trois facultes de medecine.
Le representant du Chili declare que la situation
dans son pays etait telle, au contraire, que le
Gouvernement a dil prendre des mesures afin
de restreindre le nombre de candidats admis a
faire partie du corps medical.

Enfin, le representant de la Pologne a declare
qu'il existait a l'heure actuelle 30.000 prisonniers
politiques au Chili. I1 s'est sans doute trompe
de chiffre, car s'il y en a 3.000, c'est un grand
maximum. Le nombre total des prisonniers au
Chili, y compris les prisonniers de droit commun,
n'atteint pas 30.000. Compare a ce chiffre, quel
est le nombre des prisonniers en Pologne et dans
l'Union sovietique P

M. Cruz Ocampo passe ensuite aux observa­
tions du representant de la Yougoslavie, seIon
leque1 il serait indigne de l'Assemblee generale
d'examiner le point propose par le Chili. L'ora­
teur ne croit pas qu'il soit indigne de l'Assernblee
generale de statuer sur une plainte concernant
une violation des droits fondamentaux de
l'homme.

Le representant de la RSS de Bielorussie a
utilise des arguments analogues (l38eme seance).
I1 a cite entre autres l'article 15 du reglernent de
l'Institut de droit international, qui avait deja
ete cite par le representant de l'URSS. M. Cruz
Ocampo ne repetera pas la reponse qu'il a
donnee a ce sujet.

Le representant de la RSS de Bielorussie a
lui aussi parle des conditions de vie, intolerables
et inhumaines imposees aux femmes au Chili'
I1 s'agit la d'affirmations absolument gratuites,
car il est hors de doute que les femmes chiliennes
sont plus heureuses que les femmes de I'Union

1

770



women; they were not forced to do rough manual
labour such as Mr. Cruz Ocampo had seen
wom~ engaged on in the streets of Moscow.

The last argument used had been that of the
wages paid to Chilean women. It had bee~ said
that women drew the same wages as men m the
USSR. There 'was nothing surprising in that,
when it was considered that salaries were so low
in the Soviet Union that they could scarcely be
further reduced, unless women were to be made
to work for nothing.

In conclusion, Mr. Cruz Ocampo stated that
he had lived in the USSR and had seen with his
own eyes how the Sovi~t people lived. He. would
not go into greater detail. It was not ~or Ius dele­
gation to intervene in fa~our of the n~hts of the
Soviet people, but when It was a question of peo­
pie who were prot~sting agai~st.the. violation ?f
their rights and trymg to obtain justice, the Chil­
ean delegation was justified in assuming their
defence, Those speakers who had criticized con­
ditions in Chile were not familiar with that coun­
try, whereas he had seen with his own eyes the
conditions that prevailed in the USSR.

Mr. KATZ-SUCHY (Poland) having asked to
speak in order to reply to the Chilean representa­
tive's statements, the CHAIRMAN stated that the
debate had entered the controversial field, which
was quite outside the item on the agenda. He con­
sidered that deplorable, and in the circumstances,
in accordance with rule 104 of the rules of pro­
cedure, he would allow the Polish representative
to speak only if his statement were to refer
directly to the item under consideration.

Mr. FITZMAURICE (United Kingdom) agreed
with the Chairman's remarks. He reminded the
Committee that at the 138th meeting he had left
unanswered certain remarks that had been made
against his country, simply in order that the dis­
cussion should not be prolonged. Yet the Polish
representative, having made comments that were
quite irrelevant to the item on the agenda and that
took no account of the situation in Poland and the
Soviet Union, now wished to reply to the remarks
the Chilean representative had made in reply to
his. That sort of thing could not be allowed to go
on indefinitely.

He therefore proposed that the debate should
be closed after the USSR speech.

Mr. KATZ-SUCHY (Poland) thought the
United Kingdom proposal was not in order. One
representative could not be allowed to deprive
another of the right to speak.

He invoked rule 104 of the rules of procedure,
adding that his statement would be brief.

The CHAIRMAN pointed out that the list of
speakers for the 138th meeting had not included
the Chilean and the USSR representatives, but
it had been natural to let them speak since they
were the main parties concerned. He repeated that
it was not desirable to prolong the discussion, and
that therefore if the United Kingdom represen-

sovietique : elles ne sont pas astreintes a des
travaux manuels penibles comme 1'orateur en a
vu accomplir aux femmes dans les rues de
Moscou.

Le dernier argument invoque a ete celui du
salaire des femmes au Chili. On a declare qu'en
URSS, Ies femmes touchaient le meme salaire
que les hommes. Rien d'etonnant a cela, si 1'on
considere que Ies salaires sont tellement bas dans
l'Union sovietique qu'on ne saurait les reduire
davantage, a moins de faire travailler les femmes
gratuitement.

L'orateur conclut en declarant qu'il a vecu en
URSS et qu'il a vu de ses propres yeux comment
vit le peuple de I'Union sovietique. I1 s'abstiendra
toutefois de donner de plus amples details. I1
n'appartient pas a sa delegation d'intervenir en
faveur des droits du peuple de I'Union sovietique,
mais, lorsqu'il s'agit de personnes qui protestent
contre la violation de leurs droits et qui cherchent
a obtenir justice, la delegation du Chili est justi­
fiee a assumer leur defense, Ceux qui ont
critique les conditions qui regneraient au Chili
ne connaissent pas ce pays, alors que l'orateur
a vu de ses propres yeux celles qui regnent
en URSS.

M. KATZ-SUCHY (Pologne) ayant demande la
parole pour repondre aux declarations du repre­
sentant du Chili, le PRESIDENT constate que le
debat s'est engage sur la voie d'une polemique
entierement etrangere au point inscrit a l'ordre
du jour. Il estime que cela est regrettable. Dans
ces conditions, il n'acceptera, eonformement a

.I'article 104 du reglement interieur, de dormer
. la parole au representant de la Pologne que si

ses declarations portent exclusivement sur le
point qui est actuellement a l'examen.

M. FITZMAURICE (Royaume-Uni) approuve les
observations du President. Il rappelle que, lors
de la seance precedente, il s'est abstenu de re­
pondre a certaines observations dirigees contre
son pays, et cela uniquement afin d'abreger le
debat. Or, le representant de la Pologne, apres
avoir formule des observations qui n'avaient
aucun rapport avec la question a l'ordre du jour
et qui ne tenaient nul1ement compte de la situa­
tion qui existe en Pologne et dans l'Union sovie­
tique, desire maintenant repondre aux remarques
faites par le representant du Chili en reponse
aux siennes. Cela ne saurait etre tolere
indefiniment,

M. Fitzmaurice propose en consequence que
la discussion soit close apres l'intervention du
representant de l'URSS.

M. KATZ-SUCHY (Pologne) estime que la pro­
position du representant du Royaume-Uni est
irrecevable. I1 est inadmissible qu'un represen­
tant propose de priver un autre representant du
droit a la parole.

M. Katz-Suchy invoque l'article 104 du regle­
ment interieur et declare qu'il parlera tres
brievement,

Le PRESIDENT rappelle que la liste des orateurs
de la 138eme seance ne comprenait pas les repre­
sentants du Chili et de l'URSS, mais qu'il etait
naturel de leur donner la parole puisqu'ils sont
les principaux interesses, Ceci dit, it repete qu'il
n'est P<lS souhaitable de prolonger le debat
et qu'en consequence, si le representant du

~~_~ "1
_~~~~i""~~;~~~~~§J;f~I;:?:1%'i(f~gfJh:.;.'t;)!t"3r;,,·r,'.,~):~li1!;~~¥;~i~:·:t-~~:g'i.r~:~] 7 F _~.'D.jjf£QJ:IIliIS



tative maintained his proposal, he would put the
motion for closure to the vote after the Soviet
Union representative's statement.

Mr. PAVLOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Re­
publics) was unable to understand why the ques­
tion under discussion should have occupied the
Committee's attention for such a long time, Even
if the scope of the question were broadened to in­
clude all the Soviet women who were married to
foreigners, the problem would still not justify such
detailed consideration. Moreover, the discussion
had shown that most delegations were slightly
uneasy about taking up a question which was
entirely within the domestic jurisdiction of the
Soviet Union.

He recalled that from the very beginning of
the discussion his delegation had realized that the
principal object of the entire affair was to create
an atmosphere of hostility towards his country.
The discussion which had just taken place con­
firmed that belief. Nevertheless, in spite of all
the attacks and all the slander which had been
intended to complicate the question further, the
discussion had brought out a number of positive
aspects of the problem.

At the beginning of the discussion, most dele­
gations had considered the case of Mrs. Alvaro
Cruz with sympathy. The consequent discussion
had shown that the problem was not as simple as
it appeared and that the delegations were in danger
of going astray both legally and politically. It had
become evident that the issue was not the case of
the daughter-in-law of the former Chilean Am­
bassador to Moscow, a question of minor impor­
tance. The real purpose was to exploit the situa­
tion with a view to putting the discussion on a
political plane and interfering in the domestic
affairs of a country.

The representative of Uruguay (l36th meet­
ing) had tried to justify the consideration of the
question by comparing it with the dispute between
India and the Union of South Africa. It was,
however, impossible to compare the scope of those
two problems: in the case under consideration a
single person was involved, while in the other
dispute the fate of hundreds of thousands of peo­
ple was at stake. Moreover, in t\e latter case an
international convention had been violated. Le­
gally speaking, therefore, the two cases were fun­
damentally dissimilar and that precedent could
not be invoked in order to interfere in the do­
mestic affairs of the USSR.

The representative of Peru (136th meeting)
had requested the Committee to seek a com­
promise. In Mr. Pavlov's opinion the only possible
compromise was to recognize that the United
Nations was not competent to deal with the ques­
tion, which was entirely within the domestic juris­
diction of the Soviet Union, that there had been
no violation of international law or of human
.rights and that the question should be withdrawn
from the agenda. Those were the only principles
which would provide a way out of the impasse
which the Committee had reached.

Mr. Pavlov stated that his delegation could not
accept the proposal of the Australian delegation
[AjC.6j316]. Nevertheless, that proposal had
been a positive contribution in that it indicated

Royaume-Uni insiste sur sa proposition, il mettra
la motion de cloture aux voix apres l'intervention
du representant de l'Union sovietique,

M. PAVLOV (Union des Republiques socialistes
sovietiques) ne comprend pas que la question
en discussion ait pu retenir aussi longtemps l'at­
tention de la Commission. Meme en elargissant
le cadre de l'affaire et en y faisant entrer toutes
les ressortissantes de l'Union sovietique mariees
a des etrangers, on ne peut lui donner une portee
de nature a justifier un examen aussi detaille,
Les debats ont montre d'ailleurs que la plupart
des delegations eprouvaient une certaine gene
a discuter- d'une question qui est strictement de
la competence nationale de l'Union sovietique..

Le representant de l'URSS rappelle que, des
le debut de la discussion, sa delegation s'est
rendu compte que le but principal de toute cette
affaire etait de creel' une atmosphere hostile a
son pays. Les debats qui viennent d'avoir lieu
confirment cette these. Mais, en depit de toutes
les attaques et de toutes les calomnies destinees
a susciter de nouvelles complications, la discus­
sion a mis en relief certains aspects positifs de
la question.

Au debut de la discussion, le cas de
Mme Alfaro Cruz etait considere avec sympa­
thie par la plupart des delegations; les debats
ont montre, par la suite, que le probleme n'etait
pas aussi simple qu'ille paraissait et qu'il risquait
d'entrainer les delegations dans une voie qui
n'etait pas la bonne, tant du point de vue juri­
dique que politique. On a pu comprendre qu'il
ne s'agissait pas, en fait, de la situation de la '
bru de l'ancien ambassadeur du Chili a Moscou,
qui est une question d'ordre mineur, mais de
l'exploitation de cette situation en vue de placer
les debats sur le plan politique et de s'ingerer
dans les affaires interieures d'un pays.

Le representant de l'Uruguay (l36eme seance)
a essaye de justifier l'examen de cette question
en la rapprochant du differend qui s'est eleve
entre l'Inde et l'Union Sud-Africaine. On ne
saurait cependant comparer la portee de ces deux
differends : dans le cas actuel, il s'agit d'une
seule personne, alors que, dans l'autre litige, le
sort de centaines de milliers de personnes etait
en jeu. D'autre part, dans ce dernier cas, il y
avait eu violation d'une convention internationale.
Du point de vue juridique, il existe done une
difference profonde entre les deux cas et on ne
saurait se servir de ce precedent pour intervenir
dans les affaires interieures de l'URSS.

Le representant du Perou (l36eme seance) a
demande a la Commission de rechercher un corn­
promis. M. Pavlov estime que le seul compromis
possible est de reconnai'tre que l'Organisation
des Nations Unies n'a pas competence pour
traiter cette question, laquelle reieve strictement

· de la competence nationale de l'Uni~m sovie­
tique, qu'il n'y a pas eu violation du droit inter-

•national ni des droits de l'homme et qu'il y a
· lieu de retirer cette question de l'ordre du jour.
Le representant de l'URSS considere que ces
principes .sont les seuls qui permettraient a la
Commission de sortir de l'impasse dans laquelle
elle s'est engagee, .

Quant a la proposition presentee par la dele­
gation de l'Australie [AjC.6j316], M. Pavlov
declare que sa delegation ne peut l'accepter. I1
fait remarquer, toutefois, que cette proposition

772



doubt on the part of some delegations regarding
the legality of the discussion.

The United Kingdom representative had recog­
nized (135th meeting) that, from the legal point
of view, the USSR had the right to regulate ques­
tions of nationality and the marriage and divorce
laws. Realizing that the USSR was not guilty
of violating any law, the representative ~+!1e

United Kingdom had tried to shift the question
on to the humanitarian plane.

The representative of Chile, on the contrary,
had placed the question on the legal plane, but
he had given a strange interpretation of the ar­
ticle of the resolution of the Institute of Interna­
tional Law. Mr. Pavlov recalled that, according
to that article, a diplomatic agent accredited to
the Government of a country of which he was
himself a national could not claim diplomatic
privileges or immunities. On the basis of the ar­
ticle in question, Mr. Cruz Ocampo claimed that
his daughter-in-law, who had never been ac­
credited to the Government of the USSR, could
enjoy those privileges. That reasoning was in­
admissible. Privileges and immunities were in­
tended to facilitate the work of the representative
of a State. There could be no question of extending
those privileges and immunities to private per­
sons, no matter what might be their relationship
to foreign diplomats. Therefore Mrs. Alvaro
Cruz could under no circumstances claim those
privileges, in view of the fact that she remained
a citizen of the Soviet Union. The representa­
tive of Chile had tried in vain to elude that ar­
ticle of international law. The United Kingdom
representative, who was more perspicacious, had
realized that that position was indefensible and
had placed the question on the level of interna­
tional courtesy.

When it was seen that the USSR could not
be attacked from the legal point of view, it had
been claimed that that country had violated hu­
man rights, and article 11 of the declaration of
human rights, which had not yet been adopted,
had been invoked. It was obvious that an argu­
ment could not be based on a document which
was as yet unratified, especially since the Soviet
Union had made a reservation with respect to
article 11; the USSR had not voted in favour of
that article, since its amendment had not been
accepted by the Third Committee.1 Thus, one
after the other all the accusations crumbled.

It was precisely in order to defend human
rights, and particularly the rights and the dignity
Ol: women, that his country had taken measures
such as the law prohibiting its nationals from
marrying foreigners and the regulation forbid­
ding the granting of exit visas to Soviet women
who had married foreigners. In that connexion
he recalled the letters which he had quoted at
the 136th meeting, which showed how unpleasant
life was for Soviet women living in foreign coun­
tries. In their own country, they enjoyed abso­
lutely equal rights with their husbands; when
they went abroad they lost those rights, and fur­
ther their dignity suffered from the hostile at­
mosphere which prevailed around them. It had

1 See Official Records of the third session of the Gen­
e.ral Assembly, Part I, Third Committee, 120th meeting.

renferme un element positif en ce sens qu'elle
indique un doute de la part de certaines dele­
gations quant a la legalite des debats.

Le representant du Royaume-Uni a reconnu
(135eme seance) que, du point de vue juridique,
l'URSS avait le droit de regler elle-meme les
questions de nationalite, le statut du mariage et
celui du divorce. S'etant rendu compte que
l'Union sovietique n'avait pas commis de violation
sur la plan juridique, Ie representant du
Royaume-Uni a tente de porter la question sur
le plan humanitaire.

Le representant du Chili, au contraire, a place
la question sur le plan juridique, mais en donnant
une interpretation etrange de l'article de la reso­
lution de l'Institut de droit international. L'ora­
teur rappelle que, d'apres cet article, un agent
diplomatique accredite aupres du Gouvernement
d'un pays dont i1 est lui-meme citoyen, ne peut
pretendre ni aux privileges ni aux immunites
diplomatiques. M. Cruz Ocampo, invoquant cet
article, pretend que sa bru, n'ayant jamais ete
accreditee aupres du Gouvernement de l'URSS,
peut jouir de ces privileges. C'est la un raisonne­
ment inadmissible. Le but des privileges et des
immunites est de faciliter les fonctions du repre­
sentant d'un Etat. Il ne saurait etre question de
les accorder a de simples citoyens, quels que
puissent etre leurs liens de parente avec des diplo­
mates etrangers, Mme Alvaro Cruz ne peut done,
en aucun cas, pretendre a ces privileges, etant
donne qu'elle est restee citoyenne de l'Union
sovietique, Le representant du Chili a vainement
tente de tourner cet article de droit international.
Le representant du Royaume-Uni, plus clair­
voyant, a compris que cette position n'etaitpas
soutenable et a place la question sur le plan de la
courtoisie internationale.

Voyant qu' on ne pouvait attaquer l'URSS du
point de vue juridique, on a pretendu qu'elle avait
viole les droits de l'homme et on a invoque
I'article 11 d'une declaration qui n'a pas encore
ete adoptee. Il est evident qu'il est impossible
de fonder une these sur un document qui n'a
pas ete ratifie, d'autant plus que l'article 11 a
fait l'objet d'une reserve de la part de l'Union
sovietique ; celle-ci, finalement, n'a pas vote en
faveur de cet article, son amendement n'ayant
pas ete accepte par la Troisieme Commission',
Ainsi toutes les accusations s'effondrent les unes
apres les autres.

Le representant de l'URSS declare que c'est
pour defendre les droits de l'homme et, en
particulier, les droits et la dignite de la femme
que son pays a ete amene a prendre les mesures
telles que la loi qui interdit a ses ressortissants
les mariages avec les etrangers et le reglement
qui interdit de delivrer des visas de sortie aux
citoyennes sovietiques ayant epouse des etrangers.
I1 rappelle, a cet egard, les lettres qu'il a citees
ala 136eme seance et desquelles il ressort combien
est penible le sort des ressortissantes de l'Union
sovietique vivant a l'etranger, Dans leur pays,
elles ont des droits absolument egaux a ceux de
leurs maris; des qu'el1es se rendent a l'etranger,
elles perdent ces droits et sont d'autant plus

,1 Voir les Documents officiels de la troisieme session
de l'AssembUe generale, premiere partie, Troisieme Com­
mission, 120eme seance.



been said that such situations were family affairs;
the representative of the USSR considered that
the case involved an intolerable situation against
which his country was in duty bound to protect
its nationals.

The representative of Chile had taken the lib­
erty of expressing doubts regarding the veracity
of the letters quoted by the USSR representative.
Mr. Pavlov protested against that attitude; he
affirmed that the letters were authentic, that the
facts which they recited had never been denied,
and that his country would not allow sincere and
truthful documents to be held up to ridicule.

Mr. Pavlov was surprised that certain repre­
sentatives had invoked Articles 55 and 56 of the
Charter, which called upon all nations to main­
tain peaceful and friendly relations with one an­
other. He was of the opinion that the Soviet
Union had not violated the Charter; on the con­
trary, the manner in which the problem had been
presented by Chile could not but be harmful to
friendly relations among nations.

Moreover, he did not consider that human
rights had been violated. The Soviet Union had
been accused of separating families, but only obso­
lete legislation, such as the Napoleonic Code,
could oblige a woman to follow her husband. In
one of her letters, a Soviet woman had pointed
out that husbands could just as easily follow their
wives. In that connexion the USSR representa­
tive stated that the son of Mr. Cruz Ocampo was
living in a Moscow hotel with his wife, and that
he was not disturbed in any way. Mr. Pavlov
invited the husbands of other Soviet women to
follow his example.

Replying to the representative of Greece, who
had referred to dual nationality, Mr. Pavlov stated
that his country did not recognize that system.
Moreover he pointed out that any person who
was a national of two countries was subject to the
laws of the one in which he happened to be. In
the case of Mrs. Alvaro Cruz, therefore, there
was no doubt: as a Soviet national on Soviet
territory, she was subject to the laws of her
country. The same was true of the persons men­
tioned by the United States representative, who
were nationals of both the USSR and file United
States.

Mr. Pavlov wished to reply to certain general
observations which had been made casting asper­
sions on his country. He was surprised, for one
thing, that some of those accusations had been
made by the representative of a country which
harboured fascist criminals and allowed them to
continue their deadly propaganda. He recalled
that a newspaper published in Chile openly de­
fended fascism and that it had published photo­
graphs of Graziani and Mussolini on its first page
and had devoted an editorial to the anniversary
of the fascist march on Rome.

Mr. Pavlov reminded the representative of
Chile, who had had the audacity to assert that the
people of the USSR did not know what was going
on in the world, that millions of Soviet soldiers
and civilians had lived in foreign countries and
were familiar with their capital cities. He stated
that all those Soviet citizens had returned to their
country more patriotic than before and convinced
of the value of communist principles.

<44 '44
atteintes dans leur .dignite qu'une atmosphere
hostile les entoure. On a dit qu'il s'agissait la
d'affaires de famille: le representant de l'URSS
considere, lui, qu'il s'agit d'une situation inadmis­
sible contre laquelle son pays a le devoir de
proteger ses ressortissants.

Le representant du Chili s'est permis de mettre
en doute la veracite des lettres citees par le
representant de l'URSS. M. Pavlov s'eleve contre
cette attitude; il affirme que les lettres sont
authentiques, que les faits qu'elles citent n'ont
d'ailleurs jamais ete dementis et que son pays
ne permettra pas que 1'0n tourne en derision des
documents sinceres et veridiques,

M. Pavlov s'etonne que certains representants
aient invoque les Articles 55 et 56 de la Charte,
qui invitent les nations a entretenir des relations
pacifiques et amicales entre elles, Il estime que
l'Union sovietique n'a pas viole la Charte; par
contre, la facon riont le problerne a ete pose par
le Chili ne peut que nuire aux bonnes relations
entre les nations.

It considere qu'il n'y a pas davantage atteinte
aux droits de I'homme. On a reproche a I'Union
sovietique de separer les menages, mais seules
des legislations desuetes, teI le code Napoleon,
peuvent obliger la femme a suivre son mari. Une
des citoyennes sovietiques a fait remarquer, dans
une de ses lettres, que les maris pouvaient tout
aussi bien rejoindre leurs femmes. A cet egard, le
representant de l'URSS declare que le fils de
M. Cruz Ocampo vit a l'hotel avec sa femme
a Moscou et qu'il n'est nullement inquiete :
M. Pavlov invite les maris des autres citoyennes
sovietiques a suivre son exemple.

Au representant de la Grece qui a parle de la
double nationalite, M. Pavlov repond que son
pays ne reconnait pas ce regime. Il fait remarquer,
d'autre part, que lorsqu'un citoyen jouit de la
nationalite de deux pays, ce citoyen est soumis
aux lois de celui de. ces pays sur le territoire
duquel il se trouve. Dans le cas de Mme Alvaro
Cruz, il n'y a done aucun doute: citoyenne sovie­
tique, se trouvant sur le territoire de l'Union
sovietique, elle doit se soumettre aux lois de
son pays. Il en est de merne pour ce qui concerne
les personnes mentionnees par le representant des
Etats-Unis, qui sont citoyens tant de l'URSS que
des Etats-Unis.

M. Pavlov desire repondre ensuite a certaines
observations d'ordre general qui portent atteinte
a son pays. Il s'etonne, entre autres, que certaines
de ces accusations soient .pfoferees par le repre­
sentant d'un pays qui accueille les criminels
fascistes et qui leur permet de poursuivre leur
propagande nefaste. It rappelle qu'un journal
publie au Chili prend ouvertement la defense du
fascisme, qu'il a fait paraitre, en premiere page,
des photographies de Graziani et de Mussolini et
qu'il a consacre un editorial a l'anniversaire de
la marche fasciste sur Rome.

Au representant du Chili, qui ose pretendre
que le peuple de l'Union sovietique ne sait pas
ce qui se passe dans le monde, M. Pavlov rap­
pelle que des millions de soldats et de civils de
l'Union sovietique ont vecu dans des pays etran­
gers dont ils connaissent les capitales et it declare
que tous ces citoyens sovietiques sont rentres dans
leur pays, plus patriotes qu'auparavant et con­
vaincus de la valeur des theses communistes.



Referring to the attack against the USSR Em­
bassy in Chile, Mr. Cruz Ocampo had tried to
make it appear as an act of provocation organized
by the friends of the Soviet Union. That reasoning
lacked any basis in fact. The USSR had no spe­
cial interest in creating difficulties for the Gov­
ernment of Chile; moreover the USSR did not
consider it as an independent Government and
had established diplomatic relations with Chile
only at the express request of that country. Mr.
Pavlov did not wish to imitate Mr. Cruz Ocampo
by making accusations, but he wished to empha­
size that the responsibility for the attack lay with
the Chilean authorities, who had not taken the
necessary measures to ensure the security of the
Embassy or to search for the guilty persons. In
that case diplomatic privileges and immunities
had definitely been violated.

The representative of the USSR once again
denounced the slander regarding the system of
forced labour which was alleged to be practised in
his country. He was well aware of the source of
those calumnies, and was surprised that repre­
sentatives could credit the statements of a certain
author who was a traitor to his country. The fig­
ures which the latter had quoted were absurd; if
they had been accurate there would not be one
free man in the Soviet Union. There were forced
labour camps, but only condemned criminals were
sent there, since the Government of the USSR
considered it advisable for condemned persons to
work, both for their own sake and for the sake of
society. The number of condemned persons, how­
ever, was very limited. Mr. Molotov had stated in
1931 that there were about 60,000 in Cardia.
Moreover, he had pointed out that they performed
eight hours of work each day, under normal con­
ditions; that they received a salary of from twenty
to thirty roubles a month; that they were ade­
quately fed and had books and newspapers at
their disposal, so that unemployed workers in
capitalist countries might well envy the lot of
those condemned criminals.

The general conditions of work in the USSR,
where the authority was in the hands of the work­
ers, were very different from those in capitalist
countries, where the workers were exploited by
owners. Mr. Pavlov regretted the fact that Mr.
Cruz Ocampo had not recognized that state of
affairs during the two years he had spent in the
Soviet Union. Moreover, the peoples of the USSR
had never claimed that they had created a paradise
on earth; faced with innumerable difficulties re­
sulting from the war, they were trying to build
a new world. Those who disparaged the heroic
efforts of the workers and the peasants to re-build
their country showed very little nobility of spirit.

Mr. Pavlov concluded with the assertion that it
was difficult to believe any of the statements made
by the representative of Chile. He warned the
C<;>mmittee. tha~ it could not take up the question
without violating the Charter, since Article 2,
p3;ragr3;ph 7 expressly stated that: "Nothing con­
tamed m the present Charter shall authorize the
United Nations to intervene in matters which are
essentially within the domestic jurisdiction of any
State or shall require the Members to submit such
matters to settlement under the present Charter."
If the Committee recommended that the General
Assembly should deal with the affair, it would

Parlant de l'attentat perpetre contre l'ambas­
sade de I'URSS au Chili, M. Cruz Ocampo s'est
efforce de demontrer qu'il s'agissait d'une provo­
cation organisee par les amis de l'Union sovie­
tique. Ce raisonnement est denue de tout fonde­
ment. L'URSS n'a aucun interet particulier a
creer des difficultes au Gouvernernent du Chili;
elle ne le considere du reste pas comme un
Gouvernement independant et n'a etabli de rela­
tions diplomatiques avec lui que sur sa demande
expresse. M. Pavlov ne veut pas suivre M. Cruz
Ocampo dans la voie des accusations, mais il tient
a souligner que la responsabilite de l'attentat
incombe aux autorites chiliennes qui n'ont pas pris
les mesures necessaires pour assurer la securite
de l'ambassade ni pour rechercher les coupables.
Il y a bien eu, clans ce cas, violation des
privileges et immunites diplomatiques,

Le representant de l'URSS denonce, une fois
de plus, les calornnies relatives au regime du
travail force qui serait pratique dans son pays.
Il connait la source de toutes ces calomnies et
s'etonne que les representants puissent ajouter
foi aux paroles d'un certain auteur, traitre a son
pays. Les chiffres que cite ce dernier sont
d'ailleurs absurdes, car, s'ils -etaient fondes, it
n'y aurait plus, dans l'Union sovietique, aucun
representant du sexe masculin en liberte. Il existe
des camps de travail force, mais, seuls, les con­
damnes y sont envoyes, le Gouvernement de
l'URSS estimant utile pour la societe et pour
les condamnes eux-memes qu'ils puissent accom­
plir un travail. Mais ces condamnes sont peu
nombreux. M. Molotov declarait, en 1931, qu'ils
etaient 60.000 environ en Carelie, Il indiquait,
d'autre part, qu'ils faisaient huit heures de travail
par jour, dans des conditions normales, qu'ils
recevaienl: un salaire de vingt a trente roubles
par mois, qu'ils avaient un ravitaillement suffisant
et avaient a leur disposition des livres et des
journaux, de telle sorte que les ouvriers chomeurs
des pays capitalistes pouvaient envier le sort de
ces condamnes,

Quant aux conditions generales de travail, elles
sont tres differentes en URSS - pays ou
l'autorite est aux mains des travailleurs - de ce
qu'elles sont dans les pays capitalistes ou les
travailleurs travaillent pour des patrons qui les
exploitent. M. Pavlov regrette que M. Cruz
Ocampo ne se soit pas rendu compte de cet etat
de choses pendant les deux annees qu'il a passees
dans l'Union sovietique, Il ajoute que le peuple
de I'URSS n'a jamais pretendu avoir cree un
paradis terrestre; il s'efforce, au milieu de diffi­
cultes sans nombre, dues a la guerre, de creer un
monde nouveau. C'est faire preuve de peu d'eleva­
tion morale que de denigrer les efforts heroiques
des ouvriers et des paysans pour relever leur
patrie. .

M. Pavlov conclut en declarant qu'il est difficile
d'accorder une creance quelconque aux declara­
tions faites par le representant du Chili, I1 met
la Commission en garde contre le fait qu'elle ne
peut s'occuper de cette question sans violer la
Charte, dont le paragraphe 7 de l'Article 2
stipule expressement qu' "aucune disposition de
la presente Charte n'autorise les Nations Unies
a intervenir dans les affaires qui reIevent essen­
tiellement de la competence nationale d'un Etat
ni n'oblige les Membres a soumettre des affaires
de ce genre a une procedure de reglement aux
termes de la presente Charte", Si la Commission

5??



create a precedent which might susbequently be
dangerous to other countries.

The CHAIRMAN announced that the discussion
was closed and asked the Committee to proceed
to a vote.

Mr. SANTA CRUZ (Chile) invoked rule 104 of
the rules of procedure and requested the right of
reply.

The CHAIRMAN pointed out that the representa­
tive of Poland had relinquished his right of reply
and that therefore it would be unwise and unjust
to reopen the discussion. He hoped that the repre­
sentative of Chile would not press his point.

Mr. SANTA CRUZ (Chile) said that in that case
he wished note to be taken of his delegation's for­
mal protest against the terms used by the repre­
sentative of the USSR regarding Chile.

Mr. FITZMAURICE (United Kingdom) indi­
cated that, although his country was directly in­
volved, he also would refrain from replying in
order not to prolong the discussion. Moreover, it
was generally realized what importance should
be ascribed to si-eh accusations.

Mr. DIGNAM (Australia) recalled that it had
been agreed that the draft resolution submitted by
his delegation should be considered separately be­
fore a vote was taken.

Mr. PARMINTER (Union of South Africa) en­
dorsed the Australian representative's remark; he
thought that a discussion would be useful, as some
delegations might regard the Australian draft as
a substitute text.

Tile CHAIRMAN pointed out that, in the opinion
of the Australian representative himself, the draft
was not a substitute text; the two drafts before
the Committee did not exclude each other. In
those circumstances, the amendment submitted by
France and Uruguay [A /C.6 /319] to the Chilean
proposal [A /C.6 /296] should be voted on first,
as it had been submitted first; the Committee
should then consider the Australian draft.

Mr. KATZ-SUCHY (Poland) thought that logic
might sometimes permit a departure from the
rules of procedure; it seemed that, in the present
case, it would be better to examine the Australian
draft resolution first. Its purpose was to request
an advisory opinion from the International Court
of Justice on a question which the Chilean reso­
lution was supposed to settle; he considered that
such requests under Article 96 of the Charter
had priority.

The CHAIRMAN, supported by Mr. SPIRO­
POULOS (Greece), and by Mr. SANTA CRUZ
(Chile), announced that he maintained his ruling
that the French and Uruguayan amendment to
the Chilean proposal should be put to the vote
first.

After a short procedural discussion, Mr. FITZ­
MAURICE (United Kingdom) appealed against
the Chairman's ruling, in order to close the debate.

The Chairman's ruling was upheld by 25 votes
to 1, with 11 abstentions.

recommande a l'Assemblee generale de s'occuper
de cette affaire, elle creera un precedent qui
risque d'etre dangereux ulterieurement pour
d'autres pays.

Le PRESIDENT annonce que la discussion est
close et invite la Commission a passer au vote.

M. SANrA CRUZ (Chili), invoquantl'artic1e 104
du reglement interieur, demande a utiliser son
droit de reponse,

Le PRESIDENT fait remarquer que le repre­
sentant de la Pologne a renonce a son droit de
reponse, et que, par consequent, il ne serait ni
juste ni sage de rouvrir le debat. I1 espere que
le representant du Chili n'insistera pas.

M. SANTA CRUZ (Chili) declare que, dans ces
conditions, il desire qu'il soit pris note de la
protestation forrnelle de sa delegation contre les
termes qui ont ete employes par le representant
de l'URSS a l'egard du Chi'i.

M. FITZMAURICE (Royaume-Uni) indique que,
bien que son pays ait ete directement mis en
cause, il s'abstiendra, iui aussi, de repondre pour
ne pas prolonger le debat. Du reste, on sait la
valeur qu'il faut attacher a de telles accusations.

M. DIGNAM (Australie) rappelle qu'il avait
ete entendu que le projet de resolution presente
par sa delegation ferait 1'objet d'un examen
separe avant qu'il ne soit precede au vote.

M. PARMINTER (Union Sud-Africaine) s'as­
socie a l'observation du representant de l'Aus­
tralie; il pense qu'une discussion serait utile, car
certaines delegations peuvent considerer le projet
de l'Australie comme un texte de substitution.

Le PRESIDENT fait remarquer que, de l'avis
rneme du representant de 1'Australie, il ne s'agit
pas d'un texte QC substitution et que les deux
projets dont la Commission est saisie ne s'excluent
nullement. Dans ces conditions, il y a lieu de
voter d'abord sur l'amendement de la France et
de l'Uruguay a la proposition du Chili, presente
le premier, et de proceder ensuite a l'examen du
projet de l'Australie.

M. KATZ-SUCHY (Pologne) estime que la
Icgique peut permettre parfois de s'ecarter du
reglement interieur : il semble que, dans le cas
present, il conviendrait d'examiner d'abord le
projet de resolution de l'Australie. Celui-ci tend,
en effet, a demander un avis consultatif c1e la
Cour internationale de Justice au sujet d'une
question que la resolution idu Chili pretend re­
soudre, et M. Katz-Suchy estime que de telles
requetes, visees par l'Article 96 de la Charte,
orrt la priorite.

Le PRESIDENT, appuye par M. SPIROPOULOS
(Grece) et par M. SANTA CRUZ (Chili), declare
maintenir sa decision tendant a mettre aux voix,
en premier lieu, l'amendement de la France et
de l'Uruguay a la proposition du Chill.

Apres une courte discussion de procedure,
M. FITZMAURICE (Royaume-Uni), pour mettre
fin au debat, en appelle de la decision presi­
dentielle.

Par 25 uoi» centre une, auec 11 abstentions, la
decision presidentielle est maintenue.

I
!
i

I
I



lVU. rAVLUV I.. umon or ooviet oociaust rce­
publics) drew attention to the surprising and
significant attitude of the United Kingdom repre­
sentative who had appealed against a ruling by
the Chairman with which he by no means dis­
agreed, as his vote had shown.

Mr. FITZMAURICE (United Kingdom), explain­
ing his abstention, showed that as he considered
the subject exhausted, he had been led to appeal
against the Chairman's decision because of the
attitude of various delegations, which were de­
liberately attempting to prevent the Committee
from reaching a decision at the current meeting.
By its vote, the Committee had implicitly approved
the stand taken by the United Kingdom delega­
tion.

Mr. K~TZ-SUCHY (Poland) formally pro­
tested against the abuse of a rule of procedure
the purpose of which was clear. He also protested
against the United Kingdom representative's al­
legation that certain delegations were seeking to
delay the vote. Since the result of the vote could
not be in doubt, and since it was of no importance
in any case, he did not see why the delegations
should try to delay it.

Mr. RAAFAT (Egypt) stated that he had voted
against the Chairman's ruling because the two
draft resolutions before the Committee had cer­
tain points in common and it seemed to him pref­
erable to discuss the Australian proposal before
taking a vote. However, he accepted the Com­
mittee's opinion.

The CHAIRMAN called upon the Committee for
a decision on the amendment to the Chilean draft
resolution submitted by France and Uruguay
[A/C.6/319].

Mr. SANTA CRUZ (Chile) asked that the vote
should be taken by roll-call.

Mr. PAVLOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Re­
publics) made the same request on behalf of his
delegation, which regarded the vote as a demon­
stration against the USSR.

A vote was taken by roll-call,
Argentina, having been drawn by lot by the

Chairman, voted first.
In favour: Australia, Belgium, Bolivia, Brazil,

Canada, Chile, Cuba, Dominican Republic, Ecua­
dor, Egypt, France, Greece, Lebanon, Liberia,
Luxembourg, Mexico, Netherlands, New Zea­
land, Norway, Panama. Sweden, Syria, United
Kingdom, United States of America, Uruguay,
Venezuela.

Against: Byelorussian Soviet Socalist Repub­
lic, Czechoslovakia, Poland, Ukrainian Soviet
Socialist Republic, Union of Soviet Socialist Re­
publics, Yugoslavia.

Abstaining: Burma, China, Denmark, India,
Siam, Union of South Africa.

The amendment was adopted by 26 votes to 6,
with 6 abstentions.

The CHAIRMAN then called on the Committee
to state its views on the Australian draft resolu­
tion [A/C.6/316].

Mr. DrGNAM (Australia), submitting his dele­
gation's draft resolution, wished first of all to

lVI. J:"'AVLOV t Union des Kepubllques socialistes
sovietiques) releve combien est etonnante et
significative l'attitude du representant nu Royau­
me-Uni, qui a fait appel d'une decision presi­
dentielle qu'il etait loin de desapprouver, ainsi
que l'a rnontre son vote.

M. FITZMAURICE (Royaume-Uni) explique son
abstention et fait valoir que, considerant la dis­
cussion epuisee, i1 a ete amene a. en appeler de
la decision du President en raison de l'attitude
de certaines delegations qui cherchaient delibere­
ment a. empecher que la Commission ne parvint a.
une decision au cours de la presente seance. Par
son vote, la Commission a donne son approbation
implicite a. l'attitude de la delegation du Royaume­
Uni.

M. KATZ-SUCHY (Pologne) proteste formelle­
ment contre cet abus d'une disposition du regle­
ment interieur dont les intentions sont claires,
n proteste egalement contre I'allegation du repre­
sentant du Royaume-Uni selon laquelle certaines
delegations chercheraient a retarder le vote; le
resultat du vote ne faisant aucun doute et
n'ayant du reste aucune importance, M. Katz­
Suchy ne voit pas pourquoi ces delegations
chercheraient a le retarder.

M. RAAFAT (Egypte) declare qu'il a vote
contre la decision presidentielle parce que les
deux projets de resolution dont la Commission
est saisie presentent des points communs et qu'il
lui semblait preferable de discuter la proposition
de l'Australie avant de passer au vote. 11 s'incline
cependant devant l'avis de la Commission.

Le PRESIDENT invite la Commission a se pro­
noneer sur l'amendement propose par la France
et l'Uruguay au projet de resolution du Chili
[A/C.6j319].

M. SANTA CRUZ (Chili) demande que le vote
ait lieu par appe. nominal.

M. PAVLOV (Union des Republiques socialistes
sovietiques) formule la meme demande au nom
de sa delegation, qui voit dans ce vote une
manifestation dirigee contre l'URSS.

Il est proced» au vote par appel nominal.
L'appel commence par l' Argentine, dont le nom

est tire au sort par le President.
Votent pour: Australie, Belgique, Bolivie,

Bresil, Cmada, Chili, Cuba, Republique Domini­
caine, Er.uateur, Egypte, France, Grece, Liban,
Liberia, Luxembourg, Mexique, Pays-Bas, Nou­
velle-Zelande, Norvege, Panama, Suede, Syrie,
Royaume-Uni, Etats-Unis d'Amerique, Uruguay,
Venezuela.

Votent contre: Republique socialiste sovietique
de Bielorussie, Tchecoslovaquie, Pologne, Re­
publique socialiste sovietique d'Ukraine, Union
des Republiques socialistes sovietiques, Yougo­
slavie.

S'abstienment : Birmanie, Chine, Danemark,
Inde, Siam, Union Sud-Africaine.

Par 26 uoi» contre 6, avec 6 abstentions,
l'omendement est adopte.

Le PRESIDENT invite alors la Commission a se
prononcer sur le projet de resolution presente par
la delegation de l'Australie [AjC.6/316].

M. DIGNAM (Australie ), en presentant le projet
de resolution de sa delegation, desire tout d'abord



congratulate the Chilean delegation on the dignified
and reserved manner ;-, which it had put the
question before the Committee. The partially legal
character of the problem had placed the Sixth
Committee in a delicate position. The discussion
had, in fact, been mainly on political lines, and
the draft resolution which the Committee had just
adopted stressed the infringement of diplomatic
practice and courtesy and the violation of human
rights with which the Government of the USSR
might be charged.

Regarding the legal aspect, however, members
of the Committee had differences of opinion and
doubts that should be dispelled. For that reason,
the Australian delegation had thought it advisable
for the Sixth Committee to request the Inter­
national Court of Justice for an advisory opinion
on that specific case; moreover, such an opinion
could not fail to be of great value in current
diplomatic practice.

Some representatives maintained that since 'he
advisory opinions of the International Court of
Justice were not binding they might not be acted
upon. Mr. Dignam deplored such pessimistic
statements, which might tend to undermine the
authority of the Court. He did not think that
members of the Sixth Committee could oppose
an appeal to the International Court of Justice,
which was the highest legal authority of the
United Nations. The United Nations had ex­
pressed the hope of widening the field of inter­
national law; in that connexion, Mr. Dignam
recalled resolution 171 (H), adopted by the Gen­
eral Assembly on 14 November 1947, according
to which it was "of paramount importance that
the Court should be utilized to the greatest
practicable extent in the progressive development
of international law, both in regard to legal issues
between States and in regard to constitutional
interpretation". The question then before the
Committee was well within the scope of that
resolution.

Mr: PARMINTER (Union of South Africa)
stated that, despite its sympathy for the case in
point, the delegation of the Union of South Africa
had not voted in favour of the Chilean proposal,
because it thought that the latter raised a point
of law which would have to _be clarified if the
General Assembly's decision were to be placed
on a solid legal basis. HIS delegation had there­
fore decided to abstain from voting 011 the Chilean
proposal, and to vote in favour of the Australian
proposal. Aithough the Chilean proposal had been
adopted, the delegation of the Union of South
Africa still believed that it would be desirable to
request an opinion from the International Court
of Justice, and hoped that the Committee would
decide to do so.

Mr. SANTA CRUZ (Chile) stressed that the
Committee's vote had shown that a considerable
majority of members disapproved of the attitude
of the USSR Government in regard to the Soviet
wives of citizens of other nationalities, and con­
sidered that attitude as a violation of fundamental
human rights and an infringement of courtesy and
diplomatic practice in the particular case of the
former Chilean ambassador to the USSR.

He stated that there had been no systematic
hostility towards the Soviet Union in his coun-

III

Ieliciter la delegation du Chili pour la maniere
digne et reservee dont elle a presente la question
it la Commission. Cette question, en raison de son
caractere partiellement juridique, a place la
Sixieme Commission dans une situation delicate.
La discussion a ete porte essentiellement, en effet,
sur le terrain politique et le projet de resolution
que la Commission vient d'adopter met l'accent
sur Ie manquement a la courtoisie et aux usages
diplomatiques et sur la violation des droits de
l'homme que l'on peut imputer au Gouvernement
de l'URSS.

Sur le terrain juridique, toutefois, il existe,
parmi les membres de la Commission, des
divergences de vues et une incertitude a laquelle
il importe de mettre fin. C'est pourquoi la dele­
gation de l'Australie a pense qu'il serait bon que
la Sixieme Commission sollicitat de la Cour
internationale de Justice, a propos de ce cas
precis, un avis qui ne manquerait pas, par ailleurs,
d'etre fort utile dans la pratique diplomatique
courante.

D'aucuns declarent que les avis de la Cour inter­
nationale de Justice n'ayant pas force executive,
ils risquent de n'etre pas observes. M. Dignam
deplore ces declarations pessimistes qui pourraient
conduire a saper l'autorite de la Cour, It ne pense
pas que les membres de la Sixieme Commission
puis sent s'opposer a ce que l'on fasse appel a la
Cour internationale de Justice, qui est la plus
haute instance judiciaire de l'Organisation des
Nations Unies. L'Organisation a exprime l'espoir
d'elargir le champ du droit international: M. Dig­
nam rappelle, a ce propos, la resolution 171 (H)
adoptee le 14 novembre 1947 par l'Assemblee
generale, laquelle a estime qu'il etait "de toute
premiere importance qu'il soit le plus largement
fait appel a la Cour pour le developpement pro­
gressif du droit international, tant a l'occasion de
litiges entre Etats qu'en matiere d'interpretation
constitutionelle". La question dont la Commission
est actuellement saisie entre bien dans le cadre
de cette resolution.

M. PARMINTER (Union Sud-Africaine) declare
que, si la delegation de l'Union Sud-Africaine ne
s'est pas prononcee en faveur de la proposition
du Chili, malgre toute la sympathie qu'elle
eprouve pour le cas signale, c'est parce qu'elle
estimait que cette proposition souleve un point
de droit qu'il importait d'eclaircir si l'on voulait
donner a la decision de l'Assemblee generale une
base juridique solide. Elle avait done decide de
s'abstenir sur le projet du Chili et de voter en

- faveur du projet de l'Australie. Bien que la
proposition du Chill ait ete adoptee, la delegation
de l'Union Sud-Africaine est toujours d'avis qu'il
serait bon de solliciter 1'avis de la Cour inter­
n~ti~nale de Justice et elle espere que la Corn­
mission se prononcera en ce sens,

M. SANTA CRUZ (Chili) souligne qUI~, par son
vote, la Commission a marque a une majorite
sensible qu'elle desapprouvait l'attitude du Gou­
vernement de l'URSS al'egard des ressortissantes .
de l'Union sovietique mariees a des etrangers et
qu'elle y voyait une violation des droits essentiels
de I'homme ainsi qu'un manquement a h cour­
toisie et aux usages diplomatiques clans le cas
particulier de I'ancien ambassadeur du Chili en
URSS.

M. Santa Cruz declare qu'il n'existait dans son
pays auc,une hostilite systematique a l'egard de

-

778



~;'.' on the contrary, up to the preceding year,
a y~ung country like Hs own, alive to tl~e modern
dynamic spirit, had viewed the constructive efforts
of the Soviet Union with great sympathy. The
only thing Chile coul~ not .tolerate was int.er­
ference in her domestic affairs : the only thing
which alarmed her was the international activity
of the USSR. When the unfortunate incident af­
fecting the daughter-in-law of one of its am­
bassadors had taken place, Chile had resorted to
all possible means of legal settl.ement. Its repre­
sentative at Lake Success had directed a personal
appeal to Mr. Vyshinsky. Chile had tried every
method of conciliation in the interests of the young
couple for whose safety there was reason to fear,
as wa~ shown by the action just taken against
them.

Chile had decided to appeal to the United Na­
tions for moral support; that support had just
been given by the Sixth Committee. Chile was
now prepared to refer the matter to the Inter­
national Court of Justice, in order to add legal
authority to that moral. support.

Mr. RAAFAT (Egypt) remarked that the
Australian draft resolution did not put the ques­
tion properly, namely, on the basis of the general
principle. The United Nations could not deal with
a specific case, whatever its interest. The resolu­
tion just adopted by the Committee spoke in
general terms of all Soviet wives, without enter­
ing into the question of diplomatic privileges and
immunities. In adopting that resolution, the Com­
mittee had dealt with the question of principle,
and the Egyptian delegation did not think that
the Committee should go any further. The only
effect of the draft resolution submitted by the Aus­
tralian delegation would be to re-open, in the
International Court of Justice, a subject which
had been fully discussed; the Egyptian delegation
did not think it a useful proposal, and would there­
fore vote against its adoption.

Mr. TARAZI (Syria), explaining his delegation's
vote, observed that the question before the Com­
mittee had two aspects. In the field of public
international law, the Committee had been called
upon to decide whether or not the action of the
USSR Government constituted a violation of the
Charter. It had done so, with full competence,
by adopting the Chilean proposal as amended.
Concerning the legal aspect, with which the Aus­
tralian draft resolution was concerned, the United
Nations could only put before the International
Court of Justice questions of principle concerning
either the United Nations itself or the interna­
tional community as a whole. So far two problems
had been submitted to the Court: the interpreta­
tion of Article 4 of the Charter and the determina­
tion of principles governing the responsibility of
States in connexion with injuries incurred in the
service of the United Nations.

The question before the Committee concerned
tw.o State.s. ~hose States could, if they so desired,
bring their dispute before the International Court
of Justice; but the Organization itself could not
request an advisory opinion of the Court on that
subject.

l'Union sovietique : at, contraire, jusqu'a l'annee
derniere, un pays comme le sien, conscient du
dynamisme moderne, considerait les efforts cons­
tructifs de l'Union sovietique avec beaucoup de
sympathie; la seule chose qu'il ne pouvait tolerer
etait qu'on s'immiscat dans ses affaires inte­
rieures; la seule chose qui l'inquietait etait l'action
internationale de l'URSS. Au moment ou se pro­
duisit le douloureux incident affectant la propre
bru d'un de ses ambassadeurs, le Chili eut recours
a toutes les formes de reglement juridique pos­
sibles.· Son representant a Lake Success adressa
un appel personnel a M. Vychinsky. Le Chili
voulut epuiser tous les moyens de conciliation
dans l'interet meme du jeune couple, pour la
securite duque1 il y avait lieu de craindre, ainsi
qu'en temoigne l'action qui vient d'etre engagee
contre lui.

Le Chili a ete amene a rechercher une sanction
morale de l'Organisation des Nations Unies, Cette
sanction, la Sixieme Commission vient de la
dormer. Le Chili est maintenant pret a. porter la
question devant la Cour internationale de Justice,
pour appuyer cette sanction morale d'une sanction
juridique.

M. RAAFAT (Egypte) fait remarquer que le
projet de resolution de l'Australie ne pose pas la
question comme elle le devrait, c'est-a-dire en ce
qui concerne le principe general. L'Organisation
des Nations Unies ne peut, en effet, s'occuper
d'un cas d'espece, quel qu'en soit l'interet. Le
projet de resolution que la Commission vient
d'adopter parle, en termes generaux, de toutes les
ressortissantes de l'Union sovietique, sans entrer
dans la question des privileges et immunites diplo­
matiques. En adoptant cette resolution, la Com­
mission a tranche la question de principe: la
delegation de l'Egypte ne croit pas qu'il faille
aller plus loin. Le projet de resolution de l'Aus­
tralie n'aurait pour effet que de rouvrir a la Cour
internationale de Justice un debat entierement
epuise : la delegation de l'Egypte ne l'estime pas
utile, et votera done contre son adoption.

M. TARAZI (Syrie), expliquant le vote de sa
delegation, fait remarquer que la question dont
la Commission etait saisie comportait deux
aspects: sur le plan du droit public international,
la Commission etait appelee a decider si l'action
du Gouvernement de l'URSS constituait ou non
une violation de la Charte. C'est ce qu'elle a fait,
en toute competence, par l'adoption de la propo­
sition amendee du Chili. Par contre, sur le plan
juridique sur leque:<-e place le projet de resolu­
tion de I'Australie, I'Organisation des Nations
Unies ne peut saisir la Cour internationale de
Justice que de questions de principe interessant
soit I'Organisation elle-meme, soit I'ensemble de
la communaute internationale. Elle l'a fait
jusqu'ici pour deux problemes, celui de I'interpre­
tation de I'Article 4 de la Charte et celui de la
fixation ties principes qui gouvernent la responsa­
bilite des Etats en matiere de dommages subis par
les fonctionnaires ou agents de l'Organisation des
Nations Unies.

La Commission se trouve en presence, actuelle­
ment, d'une question touchant particulierement
deux Etats. Ceux-ci peuvent, s'ils le desirent,
porter leur differend devant la Cour intema­
tionale de Justice, mais I'Organisation elle-meme
ne peut, a ce sujet, solliciter un avis consultatif
de la Cour.

7tH W r:



For those reasons, his delegation would be un­
able to vote for the draft resolution submitted by
the delegation of Australia.

Mr. DAVIN (New Zealand) announced that
his delegation would vote for the Australian draft,
although it was not convinced of the urgency of
the question; it thought nevertheless that the
proposed step would be of use in clarifying a dis­
pute in international law.

Mr. Dustrv (France) said he appreciated the
anxiety behind the Australian delegation's pro­
posal; it was designed to obtain formal confirma- .
tion from the International Court of Justice for
practices which his delegation considered as suf­
ficiently well-established.

For the reasons already given by the repre­
sentative of Syria and particularly by the repre­
sentative of Egypt, his delegation would be unable
to vote for that proposal. Furthermore, now that
the Chilean proposal, as amended, had been
adopted, it was undesirable to vote on the second
proposal before the Committee. The resolution
adopted was based on the courtesy to be shown
by States and also on diplomatic practice; it
stressed human rights and the need for respecting
them. If the Committee asked the International
Court of Justice to confirm that resolution in
some way, it would appear to be questioning the
soundness of its own decision. The Australian
draft resolution would thus weaken the signifi­
cance of the vote already taken. For that reason,
his delegation would, to its regret, be unable to
cast a favourable vote..

Mr. PAVLOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Re­
publics) stated that his delegation had voted
against the resolution adopted by the Committee
because it thought that the Sixth Committee, like
any other organ of the United Nations, was not
competent to take such a decision and to inter­
fere in so flagrant a manner in the domestic affairs
of his country.

There was a group of countries in the United
Nations which spared no effort to use the Or­
ganization as a means of interfering in the do­
mestic affairs of other States. That was the object
of the new draft; that was how international
conflicts spread.

The draft resolution just adopted by the Com­
mittee was inconsistent with the provisions of
Article 2, paragraph 7 of the Charter, which pro­
hibited all interference in affairs within the
domestic jurisdiction of States. Legally, the Com­
mittee's decision was therefore quite valueless.

Certain delegations had wished to make a
gesture of hostility against the USSR Govern­
ment and, quite unjustifiably, had started a po­
litical manoeuvre, the aims of which were clear to
all. Those delegations had presented the decision
they had obtained as a decision taken by an over­
whelming majority: the result of the vote dis­
proved that claim, as the Chilean proposal had
not even obtained the votes of a simple majority
of the total number of Members of the General

Pour les raisons qu'elle vient d'exposer, la dele­
gation de la Syrie ne pourra voter en faveur du
projet de resolution de l'Australie,

M. DAVIN (Nouvelle-Zelande) annonce que sa
delegation votera pour l'adoption de ce projet,
bien qu'elle ne soit pas convaincue de l'urgence
de la question; elle pense neanmoins que le re­
cours prevu contribuera utilernent a eclaircir un
point litigieux du droit international.

M. Dtrztrv (France) comprend le souci qui
inspire la proposition de la delegation de l'Aus­
tralie; celle-ci manifeste un scrupule qui lui fait
honneur en cherchant a faire consacrer solennelle­
ment par la Cour internationale de Justice des
usages que la delegation de la France estime,
quant a elle, suffisamment etablis.

La delegation de la France ne pourra voter en
faveur de cette proposition. Elle ne pourra le
faire pour les raisons exposees par le representant
de la Syrie et surtout par ce1ui de l'Egypte. Elle
voudrait ajouter qu'il ne lui parait pas opportun,
apres l'adoption de la proposition amendee du
Chili, de proceder au second vote qui est demande
a la Commission. En effet, la resolution que la
Commission a adoptee se fonde a la fois sur la
courtoisie dont doivent faire preuve les Etats et
sur les usages diplomatiques ; elle fait valoir les
droits de l'homme et la necessite de les respecter.
Si la Commission demande a la Cour interna­
tionale de Justice de sanctionner ce vote, en
quelque sorte, elle paraitra mettre en doute le
bien-fonde de sa propre decision. Le projet de
resolution de l'Australie affaiblirait ainsi l'impor­
tance du vote deja intervenu. C'est pourquoi la
delegation de la France, a son regret, ne pourra
lui accorder sa voix.

M. PAVLOV (Union des Republiques socialistes
sovietiques) declare que sa delegation a vote
contre la resolution qui a ete adoptee par la
Commission, car e1le estime que la Sixieme Com­
mission - pas plus, du reste, que tout autre
organe des Nations Unies - n'a qualite pour
prendre une telle decision et pour s'ingerer d'une
maniere aussi flagrante dans les affaires inte­
rieures de son pays.

M. Pavlov note qu'il existe au sein de l'Organi­
sation des Nations Unies un groupe d'Etats qui
n'epargnent aucun effort pour faire de l'Organi­
sation un instrument d'ingerence dans les affaires
interieures des autres Etats. Le projet nouveau
est destine a servir a cette fin. Le· representant
de l'URSS fait rernarquer que c'est ainsi qu'on
elargit le champ des conflits internationaux.

Le projet de resolution que la Commission vient
d'adopter est contraire aux dispositions du para­
graphe 7 de l'Article 2 de la Charte, qui interdit
toute intervention dans les affaires relevant de la
competence nationale des Etats. La decision
adoptee par la Commission n'a done aucune
valeur du point de vue juridique..

Certaines delegations ont voulu se livrer a une
manifestation hostile a l'egard du Gouvernement
de l'URSS et, sans aucune justification, ont
effectue une manceuvre politique dont les buts
apparaissent a tous. Ces delegations ont presente
la decision qu'elIes ont obtenue comme une decision
prise aune majorite ecrasante : le resultat du vote
dement ces dires puisque la proposition du Chili
n'a pas merne rallie la majorite simple par rap­
port au nombre total des Membres de l'Assem-

..

780



Assembly. The vote had therefore represented a
political and moral defeat of the supporters of
the Chilean proposal, thus surpassing the hopes
of his delegation.

The representative of Chile had stated that his
country nurtured no enmity towards the Soviet
Union. That was perhaps true as far as the people
of Chile were concerned, but it was certainly not
true as regards those 111 power, who had shown
their ill-WIn right in the Committee. The USSR
had never interfered in the domestic affairs of
Chile: it would like Chile to adopt the same atti­
tude towards it.

The authors of the Chilean proposal could
hardly be said to have been concerned with set­
tling the question they had raised; their real
purpose had been to cause a scandal. He wondered
if, having obtained their objective, they were now
embarrassed by their action. Surely they realized
that they had paved the way to the collapse of the
United Nations. The Organization had been set
up for the purpose of removing international diffi­
culties, not for the purpose of creating them; its
aim was to protect the sovereignty of States, not
to infringe it.

His delegation formally protested against the
reasons behind the action of the Sixth Committee,
even though it considered that as the decision vio­
lated the Charter, it went beyond the competence
of the Organization, infringed the sovereignty of
a Member State and was therefore devoid of all
legal value.

His delegation would also vote against the Aus­
tralian draft resolution, even though it attached
no importance to that text even if adopted; its only
interest lay in the fact that it showed the indecision
in the Committee.

The CHAIRMAN put the Australian draft resolu­
tions to the vote.

The draft resolution was rejected by 13 votes
to 9, with 12 abstentions.

Mr. FITZMAURICE (United Kingdom) said
that his delegation which, normally, was sympa­
thetic to any proposal to apply to the Interna­
tional Court of Justice, had regretfully voted
against the Australian text. It felt that in the case
under discussion, application to the Court would
serve no useful purpose, because the complaint
against the USSR was not a legal matter but a
question of human rights.

Mr. AUGENTHALER (Czechoslovakia) said he
had voted against the first draft resolution before
the Committee because his delegation could not
accept a statement of that nature, which was ab­
solutely devoid of legal value. He had abstained
in the vote on the second text, as there was no
useful reason for it after the adoption of the first
proposal.

94. Approval of supplementary agree­
ments with specialized agencies con­
cerning the use of the United Na­
tions laissez-passer

Mr. PAVLOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Re­
publics) said the member of the USSR delega-

blee, Le vote a done marque la defaite politique
et morale des defenseurs de la proposition du
Chili et il a depasse, a ce titre, les espoirs de la
delegation de l'URSS.

Le representant du Chili a dit que son pays ne
nourrissait aucune hostilite a regard de l'Union
sovietique, Ceci est peut-etre vrai pour le peuple
chilien, cela ne l'est certainement pas pour ses
dirigeants qui viennent de donner id meme un
temoignage de leur haine. L'URSS n'est jamais
intervenue dans les affaires interieures du Chili;
e1le souhaiterait que le Chili observat la merne
attitude a son egard.

M. Pavlov ne croit pas que les auteurs de la
proposition du Chili aient eu vraiment a cceur de
regler la question qu'ils soulevaient; ce qu'ils
voulaient, c'etait provoquer un scandale apropos
de. cette affaire. M. Pavlov se demande si, etant
parvenus a leurs fins, ils ne se trouvent pas main­
tenant genes de leur action et s'ils ne comprennent
pas qu'ils viennent d'ouvrir la voie a l'effondre­
ment de l'Organisation des Nations Unies.
L'Organisation a ete creee pour ecarter les diffi­
cultes internationales, non pour les faire naitre,
pour defendre la souverainete des Etats, non pour
y porter atteinte.

La delegation de l'URSS proteste formelle­
ment contre les raisons qui ont motive l'action de
la Sixieme Commission, bien qu'elle considere que
la decision prise - en ce qu'elle viole la Charte,
depasse la competence de l'Organisation et parte
atteinte a la souverainete d'un Etat Membre ­
est denuee de toute valeur juridique.

La delegation de l'URSS votera, de merne,
contre le projet de resolution presente par la
delegation de l'Australie. Elle estime toutefois
que l'adoption de ce projet cc presente aucune
importance, et que son seul interet reside dans le
fait qu'il demontre l'incertitude qui r(>Q11e a la
Commission.

e
Le PRESIDENT met aux voix le projet de re­

solution presente par la delegation de l'Australie.
Par 13 uois contre 9, avec 12 abstentions, ce

projet de resolution est rejete.

M. FITZMAURICE (Royaume-Uni) declare que
sa delegation, qui, d'une maniere generale,
accueille avec sympathie toute proposition de re­
cours a. la Cour internationale de Justice, a vote
a regret contre le projet de I'Australie. Elle
estime en effet que dans ce cas, le recours a la
Cour n'aurait eu aucun effet utile, etant donne
que ce n'est pas sur le terrain juridique, mais
sur celui des droits de l'homme, que se fonde
l'accusation portee contre l'URSS.

M. AUGENTHALER (Tchecoslovaquie) declare
qu'il a vote contre le premier projet de resolution
dont la Commission etait saisie parce que sa
delegation ne pouvait accepter une declaration de
ce genre, absolument depourvue de valeur juri­
dique. I1 s'est abstenu par contre de participer
au vote sur le second projet, qui n'avait plus de
raison d'etre apres l'adoption du premier.

94. Approbation d'accords supplemen..
taires avec Ies institutions specia..
lisees relatifs a l'utilisation du
Iaissez-passer des Nations Unies

M. PAVLOV (Union des Republiques socialistes
sovietiques) fait remarquer que le membre de la



tion concerned with that question was not present,
and moved the adjournment.

The motion for adjournment was "ejected by
16 votes to 8, with 5 abstentions.

Mr. KERNO (Assistant Secretary-General in
charge of the Legal Department) pointed out that
article VII of the Convention on Privileges and
Immunities of the United Nations provided that
the United Nations might issue United Nations
laisses-passer to its officials. Section 28 of article
VII also provided that officials of specialized
agencies might use United Nations laisses-passer
and enjoy the rights and facilities entailed, pro­
vided that the agreements for relationship con­
tained provisions to that effect.

In accordance with the provisions of that sec­
tion, the agreements concluded between the United
Nations and certain specialized agencies contained
a clause regarding the use of United Nations
lcisses-passer by officials of specialized agencies.
Such a clause was included in the original Agree­
ments between the United Nations and the Inter­
national Bank for Reconstruction and Develop­
ment, the International Monetary Fund and the
World Health Organization; such a clause had
similarly been included in the Agreement con­
cluded with the International Telecommunications
Union on the basis of resolution 179 (II) adopted
by the General Assembly on 21 November 1947.

On the other hand, a number of specialized
agencies, which did not request the inclusion of
such a clause when concluding their agreements
with the United Nations, had subsequently re­
quested the conclusion of a supplementary agree­
ment to that effect.

The question had been referred to the Eco­
nomic and Social Council, which, in its resolution
136 (VI) of 25 February 1948, had requested the
Secretary-General to conclude with any special­
ized agency which might so desire, a supple­
mentary agreement to extend to the officials of
that agency the provisions of article VII of the
Convention on the Privileges and Immunities of
the United Nations, and to submit such supple­
mentary agreement to the General Assembly for
approval.

Under the provisions orArticle 63 of the Char­
ter, agreements concluded between the specialized
agencies and the United Nations must be sub­
mitted to the General Assembly for approval. In
accordance with the above-mentioned resolution of
the Economic and Social Council, the Secretary­
General had entered into supplementary agree­
ments with the .International Civil Aviation
Organization, the United Nations Educational,

.Scientific and Cultural Organization and the
United Nations Food and Agriculture Organiza­
tion, to introduce into their original agreements a
supplementary Clause on tthe subject of the
lcisses-passer. Such clauses had been drawn up in
terms identical with those of the clauses already
included in the agreements with the International
Bank, the International Monetary Fund, and so
on. The additional agreements were therefore
submitted to the General Assembly for approval.

The International Postal Union had notified
the Secretary-General of the United Nations of

Idelegation de l'URSS au courant de cette question
n'est pas present et demande l'ajournement de la
seance.

Par 16 uois centre 8, auec 5 abstentions, la
motion dJajof~rnement est rejetee.

M. KERNO (Secretaire general adjoint charge
du Departement juridique), exposant la question
des laissez-passer, fait observer que l'artic1e VII
de la Convention sur les privileges et les imrnu­
nites de l'Organisation des Nations Unies a prevu
que l'Organisation pourra delivrer des laissez­
passer a ses fonctionnaires, Ce meme article
indique, dans sa section 28, que les fonctionnaires
des institutions specialisees pourront utiliser les
laissez-passer des Nations Unies et jouir des
privileges et facilites qui s'y attachent, si les
accords fixant les relations desdites institutions
avec 1'0rganisation des Nations Unies comportent
une disposition a cet effet.

Conformement aux dispositions de cette sec­
tion, les accords conclus entre 1'0rganisation des
Nations Unies et certaines institutions specialisees
contiennent une clause relative a l'usage des
laissez-passer des Nations Unies par les fonction­
naires des institutions .specialisees. Pareille clause
figure dans les Accords primitifs conclus avec
la Banque internationale pour la reconstruc­
tion et le developpement, le Fonds monetaire
international, 1'0rganisation mondiale de la sante ;
de meme cette clause a ete introduite, en vertu
de la resolution 179 (II) adoptee le 21 novembre
1947 par l'Assemblee generals, dans l'Accord con­
clu avec l'Union internationale des telecommuni­
cations.

Par contre, un certain nombre d'institutions
specialisees qui n'avaient pas, au moment de la
conclusion de leurs accords avec l'Organisation
des Nations Unies, demande l'insertion d'une
pareille clause, ont demande par la suite a con­
clure un accord supplementaire acet effet.

La question a ete portee devant le Conseil
economique et social qui, dans sa resolution
No 136 (VI), en date du 25 fevrier 1948, a charge
le Secretaire general de conclure avec toute insti­
tution specialisee qui le demanderait un accord
supplernentaire etendant aux fonctionnaires de
cette institution le benefice des dispositions de,
l'article VII de la Convention sur les privileges
et les immunites des Nations Unies et de soumettre
tout accord supplementaire de ce genre a l'As­
sernblee generale pour approbation.

Les accords reliant les institutions specialisees
a 1'0rganisation des Nations Unies doivent, en
effet, conformement a l'Article 63 de la Charte,
etre soumis a l'approbation de l'Assemblee gene­
rale, En execution de la resolution precitee du
Conseil economique et social, le Secretaire gene­
ral a passe des Accords supplernentaires avec
1'0rganisation de l'aviation civile internationale,
1'0rganisation des Nations Unies pour l'educa­
tion, la science et la culture et 1'0rganisation
pour l'alimentation et l'agriculture a l'effet d'in­
troduire dans les accords primitifs une clause
supplernentaire visant les laissez-passer. Cette
clause est· redigee en termes identiques a ceux
des clauses figurant deja dans les accords passes
avec la Banque, le Fonds rnonetaire, et ainsi de
suite. Ces accords supplementaires sont, par con­
sequent, soumis a l'approbation de I'Assemblee
generale.

L'Union postale universelle avait fait connaitre
au Secretaire general de l'Organisation des



sa ,#&1 _e

its desire to conclude a similar supplementary
agreement with the United Nations. The Execu­
tive and Liaison Committee of the Universal
Postal Union, however, felt itself unable to con­
clude such an agreement without the consent of
its members and was currently engaged in con­
sultation with them. In the circumstances it had
not been possible to conclude an agreement with
the Universal Postal Union.

The CHAIRMAN put the Iranian draft resolu­
tion [A/C.6/290] to tile vote.

The Iranian draft resolution was adopted by 25
uoies to none, with 6 abstentions.

Mr. KAECKENBEECK (Belgium), on behalf of
the members of the Committee thanked the Chair­
man for the manner in which he had conducted the
debates during the third session of the General
Assembly and contributed to the success of the
work of the Committee.

Mr. RAAFAT (Egypt), Mr. TARAZI (Syria),
Mr. DIGNAM (Australia) and Mr. Duruv
(France) associated themselves with the tribute
that had been paid to the Chairman by the Bel­
gian representative. They also expressed their
gratitude to the Vice-Chairman, to the Rapporteur
and to the members of the Secretariat.

The CHAIRMAN, the VICE-CHAIRMAN and the
RAPPORTEUR expressed their gratitude for the
appreciative remarks that had been made.

Mr. KERNO (Assistant Secretary-General in
charge of the Legal Department) in the name of
the Secretariat, thanked the members of the
Committee.

The meeting rose at 7 p.m.

HUNDRED AND FORTIETH
MEETING

Held at the Palais de Chailloi, Paris,
on Friday, 10 December 1948, at 3.50 p.m,

Chairman: Prince Wan WAITHAYAKON (Siam).

95. Modification of rule 44 of the rules
of procedure of the General Assem­
bly

The CHAIRMAN read the letter dated 8 Decem­
ber 1948 from the President of the General As­
sembly to the Chairman of the Sixth Committee
[A/C.6/320] and invited the members of the
Committee to state their views on the memoran­
dum by the Secretary-General [A/C.6/321], the
amendments to the rules of procedure submitted
by the Argentine delegation [A/C.6/322], the
proposal of the USSR delegation [A/C.6/323]'
the letter dated 9 December 1948 from the head
of the USSR delegation to the President of the
Assembly, transmitted to the Sixth Committee
by the Secretary-General in his note of 10 De­
cember 1948 [A/C.6/324], and the proposal of
the Chinese delegation [A/C.6/325].

Mr. FITZMAURICE (United Kingdom) won­
dered whether the USSR and Chinese proposals
for the recognition, respectively, of Russian and
Chinese as working languages were in order.

Nations Unies qu'elle desirait passer un accord
supplementaire analogue avec l'Organisation.
Toutefois, la Commission executive et de liaison
de l'Union postale universelle a estime qu'elle ne
pouvait conc1ure cet accord avant d'obtenir
l'autorisation de ses membres et elle precede,
actuellement, a une consultation avec eux. Dans
ces conditions, aucun accord n'a pu etre passe
avec l'Union postale universelle.

Le PRESIDENT met aux voix le projet de re­
solution de l'Iran [A/C.6/290].

Par 25 uoi» contre zero, avec 6 abstentions, le
projet de resolution de l'lran est adopti,

M. KAECKENBEECK (Belgique) se fait l'inter­
prete des membres de la Commission pour re­
mercier le President de la maniere dont il a dirige
les .debats au cours de la troisieme session de
l'Assemblee generale et a contribue au succes des

. travaux de la Commission.

MM. RAAFAT (Egypte), TARAZI (Syrie).
DIGNAM (Australie) et Drn-trv (France) s'asso­
cient a l'hommage rendu au President par le
representant de la Belgique. Ils adressent egale­
ment l'expression de leur gratitude au Vice­
President, au Rapporteur et aux membres du
Secretariat.

Le PRESIDENT, le VICE-PRESIDENT et le
RApPORTEUR se declarent vivement touches de
ces marques d'appreciation.

M. KERNO (Secretaire general adjoint charge
du Departement juridique) remercie les rnem­
bres de la Commision au nom du Secretariat.

La seance est levee a 19 h.

CENT-QUARANTIEME SEANCE

Tenue au Palais de Chaillot, Paris,
le vendredi 10 decembre 1948, a15 h. SO.

President: L~ prince Wan WAITHAYAKON
. (Siam).

95. Modification de l'article 44 du re­
glement interieur de I'AssemhIee
generale

Le PRESIDENT donne lecture de la lettre en date
du 8 decembre 1948 adressee au President de la
Sixieme Commission par le President de l'Assem­
blee generals [A/C.6/320] et invite les membres
de la Commission a se prononcer sur le memo­
randum du Secretaire general [A/C.6/321], les
amendements au reglement interieur proposes par
la delegation de l'Argentine [A/C.6/322], la
proposition de la delegation de l'URSS [A/C.6/
323], la lettre en date du 9 decembre 1948
adressee au President de l'Assemblee generale
par le Chef de la delegation de l'URSS et commu­
niquee a la Sixieme Commission par note du Se­
cretaire general en date du 10 decembre 1948
[A/C.6/324], et enfin la proposition de la dele­
gation de la Chine [A/C.6/325].

M. FITZMAURICE (Royaume-Uni) pose la ques­
tion de la recevabilite des propositions de l'URSS
et de la Chine, tendant a faire du russe et du
chinois respectivement des langues de travail.


	Binder2.pdf
	biton0007B03
	biton0007B04
	biton0007B05
	biton0007B06
	biton0007B07
	biton0007B08
	biton0007B09
	biton0007B10
	biton0007B11
	biton0007B12
	biton0007C01
	biton0007C02
	biton0007C03
	biton0007C04
	biton0007C05
	biton0007C06




